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NOTICE 
 

Notice is hereby given that the THIRTIETH (30th) ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of the members of 
VAS INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED in the presence of Resolution Professional will be held on 
Tuesday, September 23, 2025, at 12.30 p.m. through Video Conferencing (VC) facility (Deemed 
Venue) at Jwala Estate, Pushp Vinod-2, A Wing, 2nd Floor, Soniwadi, Near Kora Kendra, Off S.V. 
Road, Borivali (West), Mumbai 400 092 to transact the following business: 

 
Background  
 
Pursuant to order. C.P. (IB)/314/MB/2023 dated March 11, 2024, of the Hon’ble National Company 
Law Tribunal - Mumbai Bench (“NCLT Order”), Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (“CIRP”) 
has been initiated against the Company in accordance with the provisions of the Insolvency and 
Bankruptcy Code, 2016, (“Code”) and related rules and regulations issued thereunder with effect 
from March 11, 2024 (Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process commencement date).  Pursuant to 
the Insolvency Commencement Order and in line with the provisions of the Code, the powers of 
Board of Directors of the Company stand suspended and powers are vested in Resolution 
Professional, Ashok Kumar Golechha, Registration No. IBBI/IPA-002/IP-N000932/2019-
2020/12973. Hence this meeting is being convened by the Resolution Professional only to the 
limited extent of discharging the powers of the Board of Directors of the Company which are 
conferred upon Resolution Professional during the continuance of the CIRP as per the provisions of 
IBC.  
 
Further, pursuant to Section 17 of the IBC, the powers of the Board of Directors shall remain 
suspended during the continuance of the CIRP 
 
ORDINARY BUSINESS 

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements, Cash Flow Statements of the 
company including the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2025, and the Statement of Profit and 
Loss Account for the year ended on that date along with the Report of the Board of Directors/ 
and Auditors thereon. 
 

2. To appoint M/s Pranay Mandhana and Associates as Secretarial Auditors of the Company: 
To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution, with or without modifications as 
a Ordinary Resolution:  
 
"RESOLVED THAT M/s. Pranay Mandhana and Associates, Company Secretary, Nagpur, M No. 
A60165, CP No. 23399, be and is hereby appointed as the Secretarial Auditor of the Company for 
the Financial Year 2025-2026. 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT M/s. Pranay Mandhana and Associates, Company Secretary, Nagpur, 
M No. A60165, CP No. 23399, be and is hereby appointed as the Secretarial Auditor of the 
Company for the Financial Year 2025-2026, on such remuneration as shall be fixed by the RP 
committee of the Company. 
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT a certified true copy of this resolution be filed with the Registrar of 
Companies {ROC}, Maharashtra, Mumbai, in the prescribed Form MGT-14, under the signature 
of the Resolution Professional." 
 
 

 

By Order of the Resolution Professional 

                                                      For Vas Infrastructure Ltd.  
 

 

 

Place: Mumbai Rucha Rajan Pawar 

Date: August 12, 2025 Company Secretary & Compliance Officer 

 ACS No: A55041 

 

 

 

 

CDSL e-Voting System – For e-voting and Joining Virtual meetings. 

 

1. As you are aware, in view of the situation arising due to COVID-19 global pandemic, the 
general meetings of the companies shall be conducted as per the guidelines issued by the 
Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) vide Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 8, 2020, Circular 
No.17/2020 dated April 13, 2020 and Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 05, 2020. The 
forthcoming AGM/EGM will thus be held through video conferencing (VC) or other audio-
visual means (OAVM).  Hence, Members can attend and participate in the ensuing 
AGM/EGM through VC/OAVM. 
  

2. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of 
the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and Regulation 
44 of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 (as amended), 
and MCA Circulars dated April 08, 2020, April 13, 2020 and May 05, 2020 the Company is 
providing facility of remote e-voting to its Members in respect of the business to be 
transacted at the AGM. For this purpose, the Company has entered into an agreement with 
Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) for facilitating voting through electronic 
means, as the authorized e-Voting’s agency. The facility of casting votes by a member using 
remote e-voting as well as the e-voting system on the date of the AGM will be provided by 
CDSL. 
 

3. The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before and after the 
scheduled time of the commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure 
mentioned in the Notice. The facility of participation at the AGM through VC/OAVM will be 
made available to at least 1000 members on first come first served basis. This will not 
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include large Shareholders (Shareholders holding 2% or more shareholding), Promoters, 
Institutional Investors, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, the Chairpersons of the Audit 
Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders Relationship 
Committee, Auditors etc. who are allowed to attend the EGM/AGM without restriction on 
account of first come first served basis. 

 

4. The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted for 
the purpose of ascertaining the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

5. Pursuant to MCA Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, the facility to appoint proxy to 
attend and cast vote for the members is not available for this AGM/EGM. However, in 
pursuance of Section 112 and Section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013, representatives of 
the members such as the President of India or the Governor of a State or body corporate 
can attend the AGM through VC/OAVM and cast their votes through e-voting. 
 

6. In line with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 
2020, the Notice calling the AGM has been uploaded on the website of the Company at 
August 31, 2025. The Notice can also be accessed from the websites of the Stock Exchanges 
i.e. BSE Limited at www.bseindia.com. The AGM Notice is also disseminated on the website 
of CDSL (agency for providing the Remote e-Voting facility and e-voting system during the 
AGM) i.e. www.evotingindia.com. 
 

7. The AGM/EGM has been convened through VC/OAVM in compliance with applicable 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with MCA Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 8, 
2020 and MCA Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020 and MCA Circular No. 20/2020 
dated May 05, 2020 and subsequent circulars issued in this regard, the latest being 09/2024 
dated September 19, 2024. 
 

8. In continuation to this Ministry's General Circular No. 20/2020 dated 05.05.2020, General 
Circular No. 02/2022 dated 05.05.2022 and General Circular No. 10/2022 dated 28.12.2022 
and after due examination, it has been decided to allow companies whose AGMs are due in 
the Year 2023 or 2024, to conduct their AGMs through VC or OAVM on or before 30th 
September, 2025 and subsequent circulars issued in this regard, the latest being 09/2024 
dated September 19, 2024. 

 

THE INSTRUCTIONS OF SHAREHOLDERS FOR E-VOTING AND JOINING VIRTUAL MEETINGS ARE AS 

UNDER: 

 
Step 1 : Access through Depositories CDSL/NSDL e-Voting system in case of individual    

shareholders holding shares in demat mode.  
 
Step 2 : Access through CDSL e-Voting system in case of shareholders holding shares in 

physical mode and non-individual shareholders in demat mode.  
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(i) The voting period begins on Saturday, September 20, 2025 at 9.00 a.m. and ends on 

Monday, September 22, 2025 at 5.00 p.m. During this period shareholders of the Company, 

holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date 

September 16, 2025, may cast their vote electronically. The e-voting module shall be 

disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter.  

 

(ii) Shareholders who have already voted prior to the meeting date would not be entitled to 

vote at the meeting venue. 

 

(iii) Pursuant to SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated 09.12.2020, under 

Regulation 44 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015, listed entities are required to provide remote e-voting 

facility to its shareholders, in respect of all shareholders’ resolutions. However, it has been 

observed that the participation by the public non-institutional shareholders/retail 

shareholders is at a negligible level.  

 

Currently, there are multiple e-voting service providers (ESPs) providing e-voting facility to 

listed entities in India. This necessitates registration on various ESPs and maintenance of 

multiple user IDs and passwords by the shareholders.  

 

In order to increase the efficiency of the voting process, pursuant to a public consultation, it 

has been decided to enable e-voting to all the demat account holders, by way of a single 

login credential, through their demat accounts/ websites of Depositories/ Depository 

Participants. Demat account holders would be able to cast their vote without having to 

register again with the ESPs, thereby, not only facilitating seamless authentication but also 

enhancing ease and convenience of participating in e-voting process.  

 

Step 1 : Access through Depositories CDSL/NSDL e-Voting system in case of individual    
shareholders holding shares in demat mode.  

 

(iv) In terms of SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated December 9, 2020 on 

e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in 

demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with Depositories and 

Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id in 

their demat accounts in order to access e-Voting facility. 

 

Pursuant to above said SEBI Circular, Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meetings for 

Individual shareholders holding securities in Demat mode CDSL/NSDL is given below: 

 

Type of 

shareholders 

 Login Method 
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Individual 

Shareholders 

holding 

securities in 

Demat mode 

with CDSL 

Depository 

1) Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login 

through their existing user id and password. Option will be 

made available to reach e-Voting page without any further 

authentication. The users to login to Easi / Easiest are requested 

to visit CDSL website www.cdslindia.com and click on login icon 

& My Easi New (Token) Tab. 

2) After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see 

the e-Voting option for eligible companies where the e-voting is 

in progress as per the information provided by company. On 

clicking the e-voting option, the user will be able to see e-Voting 

page of the e-Voting service provider for casting your vote 

during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & 

voting during the meeting. Additionally, there is also links 

provided to access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers, 

so that the user can visit the e-Voting service providers’ website 

directly. 

3) If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is 

available at CDSL website www.cdslindia.com and click on login 

& My Easi New (Token) Tab and then click on registration 

option. 

4) Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by 

providing Demat Account Number and PAN No. from a e-Voting 

link available on  www.cdslindia.com home page. The system 

will authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile 

& Email as recorded in the Demat Account. After successful 

authentication, user will be able to see the e-Voting option 

where the e-voting is in progress and also able to directly access 

the system of all e-Voting Service Providers. 

 

Individual 

Shareholders 

holding 

securities in 

demat mode 

with NSDL 

Depository 

1) If you are already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, please visit 

the e-Services website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing 

the following URL: https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a 

Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-

Services is launched, click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under 

“Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’ section. A new screen 

will open. You will have to enter your User ID and Password. 

After successful authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting 

services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting services 

and you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on company 

name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be re-

directed to e-Voting service provider website for casting your 

vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual 
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meeting & voting during the meeting. 

2) If the user is not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to 

register is available at https://eservices.nsdl.com.  Select 

“Register Online for IDeAS “Portal or click   at 

https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp  

3) Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing 

the following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a 

Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-

Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is 

available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen 

will open. You will have to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen 

digit demat account number hold with NSDL), Password/OTP 

and a Verification Code as shown on the screen. After successful 

authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository site 

wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company name or 

e-Voting service provider name and you will be redirected to e-

Voting service provider website for casting your vote during the 

remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting 

during the meeting 

4) For OTP based login you can click 

on https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/evoting/evotinglogin

.jsp. You will have to enter your 8-digit DP ID,8-digit Client Id, 

PAN No., Verification code and generate OTP. Enter the OTP 

received on registered email id/mobile number and click on 

login. After successful authentication, you will be redirected to 

NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click 

on company name or e-Voting service provider name and you 

will be re-directed to e-Voting service provider website for 

casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining 

virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. 

Individual 

Shareholders 

(holding 

securities in 

demat 

mode) login 

through 

their 

Depository 

Participants 

(DP) 

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat 

account through your Depository Participant registered with 

NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility.  After Successful login, you will 

be able to see e-Voting option. Once you click on e-Voting 

option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site 

after successful authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting 

feature. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider 

name and you will be redirected to e-Voting service provider 

website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period 

or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. 

6

https://eservices.nsdl.com/
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/evoting/evotinglogin.jsp
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/evoting/evotinglogin.jsp


   

 

 

 

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use 

Forget User ID and Forget Password option available at abovementioned website. 

 

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues 

related to login through Depository i.e. CDSL and NSDL 

     

Login type Helpdesk details 

Individual Shareholders holding 

securities in Demat mode with CDSL 

Members facing any technical issue in login 
can contact CDSL helpdesk by sending a 
request at helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com 
or contact at toll free no. 1800 21 09911 
  

Individual Shareholders holding 

securities in Demat mode with NSDL 

Members facing any technical issue in login 

can contact NSDL helpdesk by sending a 

request at evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at : 022 

- 4886 7000 and 022 - 2499 7000 

 

Step 2 : Access through CDSL e-Voting system in case of shareholders holding shares in physical 

mode and non-individual shareholders in demat mode. 

 

(v) Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meetings for Physical shareholders and 

shareholders other than individual holding in Demat form. 

 

1) The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com. 

 

2) Click on “Shareholders” module. 

 

3) Now enter your User ID  

 

a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID,  

b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID,  

c. Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered 

with the Company. 

 

4) Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login. 

 

5) If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and 

voted on an earlier e-voting of any company, then your existing password is to be used.  

 

6) If you are a first-time user follow the steps given below: 
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 For Physical shareholders and other than individual shareholders 

holding shares in Demat. 

PAN Enter your 10-digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax 

Department (Applicable for both demat shareholders as well as physical 

shareholders) 

 

 Shareholders who have not updated their PAN with the 

Company/Depository Participant are requested to use the 

sequence number sent by Company/RTA or contact 

Company/RTA. 

Dividend 

Bank 

Details 

 OR Date 

of Birth 

(DOB) 

Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) 

as recorded in your demat account or in the company records in order 

to login. 

 If both the details are not recorded with the depository or 

company, please enter the member id / folio number in the 

Dividend Bank details field. 

 

(vi) After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab. 

 

(vii) Shareholders holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selection 

screen. However, shareholders holding shares in demat form will now reach ‘Password 

Creation’ menu wherein they are required to mandatorily enter their login password in the 

new password field. Kindly note that this password is to be also used by the demat holders 

for voting for resolutions of any other company on which they are eligible to vote, provided 

that company opts for e-voting through CDSL platform. It is strongly recommended not to 

share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your password 

confidential. 

 

(viii) For shareholders holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting 

on the resolutions contained in this Notice. 

 

(ix) Click on the EVSN 250818040 for the Vas Infrastructure Limited on which you choose to 

vote. 

 

(x) On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the same the 

option “YES/NO” for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies 

that you assent to the Resolution and option NO implies that you dissent to the Resolution. 
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(xi) Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the entire Resolution details. 

 

(xii) After selecting the resolution, you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A 

confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK”, else to 

change your vote, click on “CANCEL” and accordingly modify your vote. 

 

(xiii) Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your 

vote. 

 

(xiv) You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on “Click here to print” option on the 

Voting page. 

 

(xv) If a demat account holder has forgotten the login password then Enter the User ID and the 

image verification code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by 

the system. 

 

(xvi) There is also an optional provision to upload BR/POA if any uploaded, which will be made 

available to scrutinizer for verification. 

 

(xvii) Additional Facility for Non – Individual Shareholders and Custodians –For Remote Voting 

only. 

 

 Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodians are 

required to log on to www.evotingindia.com and register themselves in the “Corporates” 

module. 

 A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should be 

emailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com. 

 After receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the admin login 

and password. The Compliance User would be able to link the account(s) for which they 

wish to vote on. 

 The list of accounts linked in the login will be mapped automatically & can be delink in case 

of any wrong mapping. 

 It is Mandatory that, a scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) 

which they have issued in favour of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format 

in the system for the scrutinizer to verify the same. 
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 Alternatively Non Individual shareholders are required mandatory to send the relevant 
Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. together with attested specimen signature of the 
duly authorized signatory who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer and to the 
Company at the email address viz; Vasinfrastructureltd@yahoo.com (designated email 
address by company), if they have voted from individual tab & not uploaded same in the 
CDSL e-voting system for the scrutinizer to verify the same. 

   

INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS ATTENDING THE AGM THROUGH VC/OAVM & E-VOTING 

DURING MEETING ARE AS UNDER: 

 

1. The procedure for attending meeting & e-Voting on the day of the AGM is same as the 
instructions mentioned above for e-voting. 
 

2. The link for VC/OAVM to attend meeting will be available where the EVSN of Company will 
be displayed after successful login as per the instructions mentioned above for e-voting. 
  

3. Shareholders who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the 
meeting. However, they will not be eligible to vote at the AGM. 
 

4. Shareholders are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops /IPads for better 
experience. 

 

5. Further shareholders will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed 
to avoid any disturbance during the meeting. 

 

6. Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop 
connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their 
respective network. It is therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to 
mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches. 
 

7. Members who would like to express their views/have questions need to register themselves 
as a speaker by sending their request from their registered email address mentioning their 
name, DP ID and Client ID number/ folio number and mobile number, to reach the 
Company’s email address Vasinfrastructureltd@yahoo.com at least 48 hours in advance 
before the start of the AGM i.e. by Sunday, September 21, 2025 by 11:30 a.m. IST. The same 
will be replied by the Company suitably. Those Members who have registered themselves 
as a speaker shall be allowed to ask questions during the AGM, depending upon the 
availability of time. The Company reserves the right to restrict the number of speakers and 
time for each speaker depending 
 

8. Those shareholders who have registered themselves as a speaker will only be allowed to 
express their views/ask questions during the meeting. 
 

9. Only those shareholders, who are present in the AGM/EGM through VC/OAVM facility and 
have not casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise 
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not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting system available 
during the EGM/AGM. 

 

10. If any Votes are cast by the shareholders through the e-voting available during the 
EGM/AGM and if the same shareholders have not participated in the meeting through 
VC/OAVM facility, then the votes cast by such shareholders may be considered invalid as 
the facility of e-voting during the meeting is available only to the shareholders attending the 
meeting. 

 

PROCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE EMAIL/MOBILE NO. ARE NOT REGISTERED WITH 

THE COMPANY/DEPOSITORIES. 

 

1. For Physical shareholders- please provide necessary details like Folio No., Name of 

shareholder, scanned copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self-attested 

scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self-attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email 

to Company/RTA email id. 

 

2. For Demat shareholders, please update your email id & mobile no. with your respective 

Depository Participant (DP)  

 

3. For Individual Demat shareholders – Please update your email id & mobile no. with 

your respective Depository Participant (DP) which is mandatory while e-Voting & joining 

virtual meetings through Depository. 

 

If you have any queries or issues regarding attending AGM & e-Voting from the CDSL e-Voting 
System, you can write an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at toll free no. 1800 
21 09911 
 

All grievances connected with the facility for voting by electronic means may be addressed to Mr. 
Rakesh Dalvi, Sr. Manager, (CDSL ) Central Depository Services (India) Limited, A Wing, 25th Floor, 
Marathon Futurex, Mafatlal Mill Compounds, N M Joshi Marg, Lower Parel (East), Mumbai - 400013 
or send an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or call  toll free no. 1800 21 09911.  
 

       By Order of the Resolution Professional 

                                                      For Vas Infrastructure Ltd.  
 

 

 

Place: Mumbai Rucha Rajan Pawar 

Date: August 12, 2025 Company Secretary & Compliance Officer 

 ACS No: A55041 
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DIRECTOR’S REPORT 
 

To  

The Members  

VAS Infrastructure Limited  

 

The Resolution Professional/Committee are pleased to present the 30th Annual Report of the 

Company and the Statement of Audited Financial Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2025, 

as follows: 

 

UPDATE ON CORPORATE INSOLVENCY RESOLUTION PROCESS (CIRP) 

The Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench, (“NCLT’)”), had vide its order dated 

March 11, 2024 (“Admission Order”) admitted the application for the initiation of the Corporate 

Insolvency Resolution Process (“CIRP”) of VAS Infrastructure Limited (“Company”) in terms of the 

Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (“Code”) read with the rules and regulations framed 

thereunder, as amended from time to time. Further, the NCLT vide its same Order has appointed 

Mr. Ashok Kumar Golechha (Regn. No. IBBI/IPA-002/IPN000932/2019- 2020/12973), as the 

Interim Resolution Professional (“IRP”) for the CIRP of the Company, and he was subsequently 

confirmed as Resolution Professional (“RP”) in the first meeting of the Committee of Creditors 

(CoC) held on 5 April, 2024. 

 

Pursuant to the publication of the Appointment Order and in accordance with the provisions of 

the Code, all the powers of the Board of Directors of the Company (“Board of Directors”) stand 

suspended and the same along with the management of affairs of the Company have been vested 

with and are being exercised by the RP. 

 

Currently, a resolution plan has been approved by the Committee of Creditors and has been filed 

with Hon'ble NCLT for its consideration. Accordingly, the Resolution Professional is carrying out 

the Compliances for the year ended 31st March 2025. 

 

The Resolution Professional (in lieu of the Suspended Board of Directors) of the Company        

hereby presents the Annual Report of the Company together with the Audited Standalone and 

Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2025. 

 

FINANCIAL RESULTS 
(Amount in Lacs) 

 

 Year ended 

31.03.2025 

Year ended 

31.03.2024 

Turnover Nil (41.97) 

Profit/(Loss) Before Depreciation, (46.13)  
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Finance Charges & Taxation (909.71) 

Profit/(Loss) after Depreciation & Taxation (49.35) (6,225.90) 

Surplus (Deficit) of Profit & Loss Account of earlier 
year 

(3,0113.82)  

(2,3887.93) 

Balance carried over to Balance-sheet (50.46) (6,225.90) 

 

DIVIDEND 

No dividend is declared for the FY 2024-2025. 
 

DETAILS OF SHARES 

The details of Unclaimed Dividend including Equity shares held to be transferred to IEPF Authority 

are available on the website of IEPF Authority and the same can be assessed through the website 

www.iepf.gov.in. Such details are also available on the website of the company at 

www.vasinfrastructureltd.com. 

INDIAN ACCOUNTING STANDARDS  

As per the requirements of the Notification dated 16.02.2015 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs 
(MCA) Standalone and the Financial Statement of the Company for the Financial Year 2024-2025 have 
been approved as per Ind AS.  
 

AMOUNT TRANSFERRED TO RESERVES 

During the financial year under review, no amount has been transferred to Reserves & Surplus. 

 

NATURE OF INDUSTRY 

The Company is directly engaged in the business of Development of Real Estate, residential 
facilities including construction, infrastructure. 
 

STATEMENT ON COMPANY'S AFFAIRS 

At present, the Company is non-operational, and any new projects shall be undertaken by the 
Successful Resolution Applicant, subject to the approval of the Resolution Plan by the Hon’ble 
NCLT. 

 

During the year ended 31st March, 2025, your company has made loss after tax of Rs 50.46 lakhs 
as against loss of Rs 6,225.89 lakhs in the previous year.  

 

MATERIAL CHANGES SINCE END OF FINANCIAL YEAR TILL DATE OF THIS REPORT 

There are no material changes since end of the financial year till date of this Report. 

 

ASSOCIATE COMPANIES 

As on 31st March, 2025, no Company is an Associate of the Company. 

During the year, no other Company, became a Subsidiary/Associate/Joint Venture Company of 
the Companies. 
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DEPOSITS 

The company has not invited or accepted any Deposits as required under section 73 of the 
companie’s Act from the public during the year under review. 
 
NO FRESH LOAN TAKEN FROM FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS 
The Company has not availed any fresh loan/Working Capital facility during the year 2024-2025. 

The company has carried out valuation on the stock/ other assets during the year as per the 

requirements of the IBC, 2016. 

 

SUBSIDIARY COMPANY 

The Company does not have any Subsidiary/Joint Venture/Associate Company as on 
and for the year ended 31st March, 2025. 
 

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENT: 
Particulars of the loans given, Investment made or guarantee given or security provided and 

the purpose for which the loan or guarantee or security is proposed to be utilized by the 

recipient of the loan or security are provided, if any to the Financial Statement. 

 

PARTICULARS OF CHANGE IN BUSINESS 

There is no change in the business operations of the Company. 

 

VOLUNTARY REVISION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

We state that there is no Voluntary Revision of Financial Statements during the Financial Year 2024-
2025.   

 

GLOBAL DEPOSITORY RECEIPT 

During the year, the company has not received any Global Depository Receipt or American 
Depository Receipt or warrants or any convertible instruments which has impact on our Share 
Capital (Equity) of the Company. 

 

COMMODITY PRICE RISK OR FOREIGN EXCHANGE  

There is no commodity price risk or foreign exchange risk to the company as our activities are 
redevelopment including Building and construction activities. 

 

WEB ADDRESS 

Our Web address is www.vasinfrastructureltd.com and all the data including Annual Report 
and various others matters are displayed on our website.  

 

ANNUAL RETURN 

As required under Section 134(3)(a) and Section 92(3) of the Act, the data on Annual Return 
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has been uploaded on the Company’s’ website and can be accessed at 
www.vasinfrastructureltd.com under Investor Relation 

 

MATERIAL DEVELOPMENTS ON HUMAN RESOURCES/INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS  

There is no Material Development on human resources /industrial relations front, including 
number of employees. 

 

RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN DIRECTORS INTER-SE 

Not Applicable since there are no employees in the company.  

 

STATUTORY AUDITORS 
Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the audit of the financial statements of 
the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2025, was conducted by M/s. Satyaprakash 
Natani & Company, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 115438W), the Statutory 
Auditors of the Company. 
 
M/s. Satyaprakash Natani & Company were re-appointed as Statutory Auditors at the 29th Annual 
General Meeting for a period of three years, from the Financial Year 2024–2025 to Financial Year 
2026–2027. 
 
The Statutory Auditors have issued an Unmodified Opinion on the standalone and consolidated 
financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025.  
 
The contents of the Auditors’ Report are self-explanatory and do not call for any further 
comments. 
 

COST AUDITOR 

As per Sec. 148 of the Companies Act, the Company is not required to maintain the cost Audit 

records, as the same is not applicable to our Company. 

 

SECRETARIAL AUDITORS REPORT  
As required u/s. 204 of the Act and Reg. 24(A) of SEBI LODR was conducted by CS Pranay 
Mandhana & Associates, Practicing Company Secretary, ACS 60165 (CP No. 23399). The 
Secretarial Audit Report dated 21.05.2025 is attached and the same forms Part of the Board 
Report.  

 
The Qualification/ observation made by Secretarial Auditor in his Report, the contents of the 
said Audit Report are self-explanatory and do not call for any further comments.  

 

The Company has obtained Practising Company Secretary Certificate on Corporate Governance 
on Secretarial Compliance Report attached as ANNEXURE V. 
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The Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year 2024–25, as issued by the Secretarial 
Auditor, is annexed herewith and forms part of this Report as ANNEXURE IV. 

 

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNING AND 
OUTGO 

Information in accordance with Section 134 (3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the 

Companies (Disclosure of Particulars in the Report of Board of Directors) Rules, 2014 is given as 

below forming part of this report. The disclosure of particulars with respect to Conservation of 

Energy is not applicable in the case of your company. 

 

Particulars as required under Companies (Disclosure of Particulars in the Report of Directors) 
Rules, 1988 and forming part of Directors' Report for the year ended 31st March, 2025. 
 

Sr. 
No. 

Particulars Current Year      
Rs. 

Previous Year 
Rs. 

I.                                                                                   RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT (R & D)                                                                          

a) Specific areas in which R & D carried out by   
the Company 
 

None None 

b Benefits derived as a result of the above R&D 
(Generation of Solar) 
                                          

None None 

c Further plan of action: -                                                                  None None 

d Expenditure on Research &   Development                                Nil Nil 

II TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, ADAPTATION & 
INNOVATION 

  

a Efforts in brief made towards Technology 
  Absorption, Adaptation and Innovation                                      

Nil Nil 

b Benefit derived as a result of solar *                                              Nil Nil 

c Particulars of Technology (solar) Amount, 
spent                                                                  
*Saving in Electricity consumption will be 
continuous available to the Company 

Nil Nil 

III FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS & OUTGO   

a Activities relating to exports and export plans             

b Total Foreign Exchange Used & Earned:   

 i) Foreign Exchange Used                                                              - - 

 ii) Foreign Exchange Earned - - 

 
 

STOCK EXCHANGE 

The Company is listed on the Stock Exchange. 

1.  Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd. and we have paid to BSE Listing Fees for the Year  

2024-2025. 
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DIRECTORS: 
The Company has constituted Board but since, the company was under CIRP, the Board powers 

are suspended.    

 

The Board consists of 2 Directors, out of which one is Executive Director and other one is 

Independent Director.  

 

Further, as specified by the Secretarial Auditor, we state that none of the Directors on the Board 

of the Company have been debarred or disqualified from continuing as Director of the Company 

as prescribed by SEBI and also confirmed by our Secretarial Auditor.   

 

During the year, none of the Directors are seeking re-appointment at this AGM as their terms of 

Appointment are for 5 years.  Accordingly, pursuant to Reg.26(4) and 36(3) of Listing Reg. & Sec. 

Standard on General Meetings issued by the ICSI, New Delhi, in respect of Director seeking 

appointment/re-appointment at this AGM not annexed. 

  

Declaration by Mr. Dhrup chand Ramdhar Varma, that he meets the criteria pursuant to 

provisions of Sec 149(c) of the Companies Act, 2013 are received by the Company. 

 

As regards the Appointment of Women Director under Section 149, of the Companies Act, 2013, 

your company has already appointed Mrs. Kirti Padave as (Women) Executive Director as per the 

Board of Directors Meeting held on 14th August, 2012.  

 

DISCLOSURE ABOUT RECEIPT OF ANY COMMISSION BY DIRECTOR FROM A COMPANY 
None of the Directors of the Company are receiving any Commission from the Company; hence 

the requirement of disclosure is not applicable. 

 

DISCLOSURE ABOUT RECEIPT OF COMMISSION / REMUNERATION BY MANAGING DIRECTOR / 

WHOLE-TIME DIRECTOR FROM ITS HOLDING OR SUBSIDIARY COMPANY 

 

Since the Company does not have any Holding or Subsidiary Company, the requirement of 

disclosure is not applicable. None of the Directors or Independent Directors of the Company are 

receiving any Commission or Remuneration from its Holding or Subsidiary Company or any 

Group Companies. 

 

EVALUATION OF BOARD, COMMITTEES & DIRECTORS 

Since Board is suspended, no evaluation was conducted. 

 

REPORTING OF FRAUD 
The Auditors of the Company have not reported any instances of Fraud Committed against the 

Company by its officers or employees as specified Under Section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 

2013. 
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SHARES BUY BACK OF SECURITIES 
The Company has not bought back any of its securities during the year under review. 

 

SWEAT EQUITY 
During the year, the Company has not issued any Equity Shares with differential rights or any 
Sweat Equity Shares. 

 

BONUS SHARES 
No Bonus Shares were issued during the year under review, hence the requirement 
of disclosure is not applicable. 

 

EMPLOYEES STOCK OPTION PLAN 
The Company has not provided any Stock Option Scheme to the employees; hence the 
requirement of disclosure is not applicable. 

 

EQUITY SHARES WITH DIFFERENTIAL VOTING RIGHTS 
The Company has not issued any Equity Shares with Differential Voting Rights during the year 

under review hence the requirement of disclosure is not applicable. 

 

FAMILIARIZATION PROGRAMME 
The details of programs for familiarization of Independent Directors with the Company, their 

roles, rights, responsibilities in the Company, nature of the industry in which the Company 

operates, business model of the company and related matters are put on the website of the 

company at www.vasinfrastructureltd.com. 

 

RISK MANAGEMENT 

Pursuant to Section 134(3) (n) of the Companies Act, 2013 and relevant Regulation of Listing 
Regulation 2015, the Company has adopted a Risk Management Policy for the identification and 
implementation of a Risk Mitigation Plan for the Company. The company has included 
appropriate procedures to inform the Committee about the Risk Assessment and minimization 
procedures. The Committee periodically revisit and reviews the overall Risk Management Plan 
for making desired changes in response to the dynamics of the business. 

 

VIGIL MECHANISM AND WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY 

Details in respect of Vigil Mechanism and Whistle Blower Policy are provided in the Corporate 
Governance report forming Part of this Report. 

 

SIGNIFICANT & MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORY/ JUDICIAL AUTHORITY 
There are no significant materials orders passed by the Regulatory or Courts or Tribunal, which 

would impact the going concern status of the company.  

 

Currently, a resolution plan has been approved by the Committee of Creditors and has been filed 

with Hon'ble NCLT for its consideration. Accordingly, the Resolution Professional is carrying out 
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the Compliances for the year ended 31st March 2025. 
 

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY 
The provisions of Corporate Social Responsibility are not applicable to our Company. 

 
INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS 
The Company has got internal control system commensurate to the size and the systems and 
operations. It is supplemented by extensive internal audit procedures, reviewed by 
Management and Audit Committee. The internal audit covers all the activities of the company. 
Company reviews findings of internal audit system on regular basis and they are upgraded 
based on internal audit recommendations. Company's statutory Auditors' have confirmed the 
adequacy of internal control systems. 
 

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT UNDER SECTION 134 (5) 
The Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench, (“NCLT’)”), had vide its order dated 
March 11, 2024 (“Admission Order”) admitted the application for the initiation of the Corporate 
Insolvency Resolution Process (“CIRP”) of VAS Infrastructure Limited (“Company”) in terms of the 
Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (“Code”) read with the rules and regulations framed 
thereunder, as amended from time to time. Further, the NCLT vide its same Order has appointed 
Mr. Ashok Kumar Golechha (Regn. No. IBBI/IPA-002/IPN000932/2019- 2020/12973), as the 
Interim Resolution Professional (“IRP”) for the CIRP of the Company, and he was subsequently 
confirmed as Resolution Professional (“RP”) in the first meeting of the Committee of Creditors 
(CoC) held on 5 April, 2024. 

All documents referred to in the accompanying Notice are open for inspection at the Registered 
Office of the Company during the office hours of the Company on any working days From 
September 21, 2025 to September 23, 2025, between 12.00 noon to 4.00 p.m. 
 
The Resolution Professional is not in the position to confirm to the provisions of Section 134(3)(c) 
of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 
I.   PARTICULARS OF REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS/KMP/EMPLOYEES 
The details as required under Sec.197 of the Companies Act, 2013, and Rule 5 of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel),  
None of the Directors/KMP/Employees are drawing remuneration in excess of the limits during 
the year under review. 
 Details of remuneration paid during the Financial Year 2024-2025 
 
S.NO. Name Fees 
1. Mr. Dhrupchand Varma Nil 
2. Mrs. Kirti Padave Nil 
3. Mr. James Desai Nil 
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SALARY PAID TO EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL  

 

S.NO. NAME Total Salary 

including perks 

1 Mrs. Rucha Rajan Pawar (Company Secretary) – 

KMP 

 (Joined 13-11-2024)  

1,19,600.00 

 
1. The percentage increase, decrease in the median remuneration of employees in the 
     financial year: NIL 

2. The number of permanent employees on the rolls of Company as on 31.03.2025 - Nil 

3.  Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the Remuneration Policy of the Company:  

     It is affirmed that the remuneration paid is as per the Remuneration Policy applicable for  

      Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other employees, adopted by the Company. 

 

The detailed statement containing the prescribed particulars is attached to this Report as 
ANNEXURE III. 

 

DIRECTORS SEEKING APPOINTMENTS & RE-APPOINTMENT 

As stated, Pursuant to Regulation 36 of SEBI (LODR) Regulation 2015, none of the Directors to be 
re-appointed at this AGM and the same is not applicable.   

 

TAXATION 

The Companies Income Tax Assessment have been completed up to the Assessment Year 2016-  
2017. The assessment for FY 2017-18 is under review by the Tax authorities. All other applicable 
compliances are compiled with up to FY 24-25. 

 

INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS 

Industrial Relations with all the employees of the Company were cordial during the year under 
review. 

 

SEXUAL HARASSMENT ON WOMEN (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013 
Since there are no employees and hence there is no complaints on sexual harassment of 
women/employees.  

 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT 
The Management discussion and Analysis Report gives a detailed account of state of Affairs 
forms Part of this Annual Report. The same is attached herewith as ANNEXURE I. 
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 
 

A Report on Corporate Governance along with a Certificate from Auditors of the Company regarding 

the compliance with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated under Part E of 

Schedule V of SEBI LODR forms Part of this Annual Report. 

 

Since the details regarding composition and meetings of the Resolution Professional committee 

are covered under the Corporate Governance Report, the same are not repeated here for the sake 

of brevity. The same is attached herewith as ANNEXURE II. 

 
COMPLIANCE WITH THE PROVISIONS OF SECRETARIAL STANDARD 

The applicable Secretarial Standard i.e. SS-1 and SS-2 relating to the meetings of the Board of 

Directors' and General Meetings have been duly complied by the company. 

 

INSIDER TRADING REGULATIONS & CODE OF DISCLOSURE 

The Board of Directors have adopted the Code of Practice and procedures for fair disclosure of 

Unpublished Price Sensitive Information and Code of Internal Procedures and conduct for 

Regulating Monitoring and Reporting of Trading by Insiders in accordance with the requirements of 

the SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulation 2015. 

 

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS  
No Related Party Transactions (RPT) were entered into by the Company during the year under 

Review.  

 

There were no materially significant Related Party Transactions made by the Company with the 

Promoters/Directors/KMP or other designated persons which could have potential conflict with 

the interest of the Company at large. As such, no particulars of such contracts or arrangements are 

furnished.  

 

In accordance with the requirement of SEBI, LODR the Company has formulated and adopted policy 

for determining materiality of and dealing with RPTs. Those policies have been amended from 

time to time with the amendment of SEBI, LODR. These codes and policies are already displayed 

on Company's website at www.vasinfrastructureltd.com. 

 

The same is attached herewith as ANNEXURE VII 

 

ENVIRONMENT PROTECTION AND POLLUTION CONTROL 

The Company has always been socially conscious corporate and has always carried forward all its 
operations and procedures for Environment friendly norms with all necessary clearances.  
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CAUTIONARY FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENT 
Certain statement in the Directors' Report describing the Companies objectives, projections, 

estimates, expectations or predicators may be forwarding looking statements within the meaning 

of applicable securities laws and regulations. Actual results could differ from those expressed or 

implied. Important factors that could make a difference to the Companies operations include 

Labour and material availability and prices, cyclical demand and pricing of the company’s 

principal markets, changes in government, regulations, tax, economic development within India 

and other incidental factors 

 

GREEN INITIATIVES 

Electronic copies of the Annual Report 2024-2025 and the Notice of the AGM are sent to all the 

members whose email address are registered with the R&T Agents i.e. MUFG In Time (I) Pvt. 

Ltd.   

 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 
The RP expresses his gratitude for the valuable support and co-operation extended by various 
Government authorities and stakeholders including shareholders, banks, financial institutions, 
viewers, vendors and service providers. 
 
The RP also places on record his deep appreciation towards the dedication and commitment of 
your Company's employees at all levels and look forward to their continued support in the future 
as well. 
 
The RP appreciates and values the contribution made by every member of the VAS family. 

 

                                                                                      For Vas Infrastructure Ltd 

                                                                                      (Company under CIRP)  

 

 

 

                     Sd/- 

Place: Mumbai                                                        Ashok Kumar Golechha 
Date: August 12, 2025                                                  Resolution Professional  
                                                                    Regn.No. IBBI/IPA-002/IP-N000932/2019- 2020/12973 
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ANNEXURE I 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT 

VAS INFRASTRUCTURE LTD. (VIL) continues to uphold the principles of sound Corporate 
Governance. The Company believes that transparent, ethical, and accountable governance 
practices are essential to create long-term value for all stakeholders. 

VIL is committed to adhering to the highest standards of governance, ensuring fairness, full 
disclosure, integrity, and compliance with all applicable laws and regulations. 

INDIAN ECONOMY – OUTLOOK 

India remains one of the fastest-growing major economies in the world. Despite global challenges 
including geopolitical tensions, supply chain disruptions, and tightening financial conditions, the 
Indian economy is projected to grow at a robust 6.5% to 7% in FY 2024–25, as per RBI and IMF 
estimates. 

This growth is expected to be driven by: 

 Sustained domestic consumption 
 Government infrastructure investments 
 Revival in private sector capital expenditure 
 Lower inflation compared to FY 2022–24 

The government's continued emphasis on the “Make in India” initiative, Production Linked 
Incentive (PLI) schemes, and focus on affordable housing and infrastructure are expected to further 
support economic activity. 

SECTOR OUTLOOK – REAL ESTATE 

The Indian Real Estate sector has shown strong signs of recovery in FY 2023–24 and continues to 
gain momentum in FY 2024–25. Residential demand is witnessing steady growth, especially in Tier I 
and Tier II cities, supported by: 

 Rapid urbanisation 
 Stable interest rates on home loans 
 Improved buyer sentiment 
 Rising disposable incomes 

COMMERCIAL REAL ESTATE is also seeing renewed interest due to return-to-office trends and 
demand from IT, co-working, and manufacturing sectors. The implementation of RERA, digitization 
of land records, and transparent legal frameworks have enhanced investor confidence. 

Despite higher input costs and regulatory challenges, the sector is projected to grow at 8–9% CAGR 
in the medium term. Government support through infrastructure development, PMAY housing 
schemes, and tax reliefs continues to fuel momentum. 
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INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS 

The Company has in place adequate internal control systems commensurate with its size and 
nature of operations. These systems are regularly tested and reviewed through internal audits. The 
Audit Committee and Management review key findings and ensure timely implementation of 
corrective measures. 

The Statutory Auditors have confirmed the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal financial 
control systems. 

BUSINESS PERFORMANCE & CIRP STATUS 

During FY 2024–25, the Company continued to remain under the Corporate Insolvency Resolution 
Process (CIRP) pursuant to the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016. All operations have been 
suspended during the resolution process. 

Any future business activity, project implementation, or investments will depend on the successful 
completion of CIRP and approval of the resolution plan by the Hon’ble NCLT. 

THREATS AND RISK MANAGEMENT 

Despite the economic recovery, the Company faces external and internal risks, including: 

 Inflationary pressures affecting construction costs 
 Land acquisition delays 
 Regulatory compliance complexities 
 Volatility in interest rates and funding availability 
 Contractor shortages and skilled labour gaps 

The Company has a structured Risk Management Framework to identify, evaluate, and mitigate 
potential risks. However, until CIRP concludes, implementation remains on hold. 

OPPORTUNITIES 

Post-CIRP, the Company expects to explore new business avenues in real estate and infrastructure 
development, in alignment with emerging trends like: 

 Green and sustainable buildings 
 Affordable housing projects 
 Redevelopment of urban spaces 
 Smart city infrastructure 

Favorable demographics, government push on housing and infrastructure, and a growing middle 
class position the Company to benefit from long-term sectoral trends. 
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INDUSTRY SCENARIO & REGULATORY ENVIRONMENT 

The regulatory framework for the real estate sector has evolved significantly, focusing on 
transparency, accountability, and consumer protection. Implementation of RERA, GST, digitisation 
of approvals, and faster clearance mechanisms have improved ease of doing business. 

VAS Infrastructure Ltd. continues to remain committed to full compliance with applicable statutory 
and regulatory requirements. The Company will ensure adherence to evolving legal frameworks 
post-CIRP as it charts a new strategic path forward. 

NEW PROJECTS 

The Company shall initiate new projects only after the successful completion of the Corporate 
Insolvency Resolution Process. Project selection will be aligned with future demand trends and 
guided by financial and operational prudence. 
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ANNEXURE II 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 

 
The Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench, (“NCLT”), had vide its order dated 

March 11, 2024 (“Admission Order”) admitted the application for the initiation of the Corporate 

Insolvency Resolution Process (“CIRP”) of VAS Infrastructure Limited (“Company”) in terms of the 

Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (“Code”) read with the rules and regulations framed 

thereunder, as amended from time to time. Further, the NCLT vide its same Order has appointed 

Mr. Ashok Kumar Golechha (Regn. No. IBBI/IPA-002/IPN000932/2019- 2020/12973), as the 

Interim Resolution Professional (“IRP”) for the CIRP of the Company, and he was subsequently 

confirmed as Resolution Professional (“RP”) in the first meeting of the Committee of Creditors 

(CoC) held on 5 April, 2024. 

 

Pursuant to the publication of the Appointment Order and in accordance with the provisions of 

the Code, all the powers of the Board of Directors of the Company (“Board of Directors”) stand 

suspended and the same along with the management of affairs of the Company have been vested 

with and are being exercised by the RP. 

 

Currently, a resolution plan has been approved by the Committee of Creditors and has been filed 

with Hon'ble NCLT for its consideration. Accordingly, the Resolution Professional is carrying out 

the Compliances for the year ended 31st March 2025. 

 

Since the Company is currently under CIRP and does not have any operations, the RP is not in a 

position to comment on the Company’s Philosophy on Corporate Governance. 

 

1. BOARD OF DIRECTORS: 

As per the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016, Section 17, from the date of appointment of 
the IRP i.e. March 11, 2024, in case of VAS Infrastructure Limited (“Company”), the powers of 
the Board of Directors stand suspended. 

 

Under the circumstances RP confirms the following: 
 
a) Composition of the Suspended Board and other Directorships of the Board Members 

 

The composition of the Board of Directors of the Company is in compliance with the provisions of the 
Act and Regulation 17 of the Listing Regulations as on March 31, 2025. 

As on March 31, 2025, the composition of the Board, their other directorships, committee positions is 
stated herewith: 
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Sr. 

No. 

Name of the 

Directors 
Category  

As on 31st March, 2025 

(excluding the position in the Company) 

No. of 

Directo

rship 

Name of the other 

listed entity and 

designation thereof.   

Committee 

Membership Chairmanship 

1 
Kirti Kishore 

Padave 

Executive 

(Women) 

Director 

NIL NIL NIL Nil  

2 
Mr. Dhrupchand 

Varma 

Non-

Executive 

Independent 

Director 

NIL NIL NIL NIL 

Note: 

 The Directorship/s held by Directors as mentioned above do not include Directorships in Foreign 
Companies, Companies incorporated under Section 8 of Companies Act, 2013 and Private Limited 
Companies. 

 Membership/Chairmanship of only Audit Committee and Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee of 
Public Limited Companies has been considered. 

 None of the Directors on the Board holds directorships in more than ten public companies. 

 None of the Independent Director, serves as an Independent Director in more than 7 (Seven) Listed 
Companies nor is a member in more than 10 (Ten) committees or acts as Chairman of more than 5 (Five) 
Committees. 

 
b) Attendance at Meeting of the Board of Directors and last Annual General Meeting 

In place of Board meetings, RP Committee meetings (comprising of 1 independent Director) were 
held during the F.Y. 2024-25. The RP attended the last Annual General Meeting held for F.Y. 2023-
24. 

 
c) Separate Meeting of Independent Directors 

As the company is under CIRP process and power of board is suspended, Accordingly there was 
no separate meeting of Independent Director during the year. 
 

d) Confirmation on Independent Directors 
All the Independent Directors fulfil the conditions as specified under Act and Listing Regulations 
and are independent to the management. 
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e) Detailed reasons for the resignation of an Independent Director 
During the year under review, no Independent Director has resigned from the Board of the 
Company. 

 
f) Director’s Familiarization Programme 

The details of Director’s induction and familiarization programme are available on the 
Company’s website at www.vasinfrastructureltd.com 
 

g)  Information placed before the Board Members 
As the Company is in CIRP process, the information as related/ applicable to the Company during 
the financial year 2024-25, under Part A to Schedule II of the Listing Regulations, was placed 
before the Resolution Professional Committee. 
 

h) Code of Conduct 

A copy of the said Code of Conduct is available on the website of the Company at: 
www.vasinfrastructureltd.com 
 

i) Skills / Expertise / Competencies of the Board of Directors 
Considering the fact that the Company has been incurring continuous losses for the last few 
years, RP is unable to comment on the skills / expertise / competencies of the Board of Directors. 

 

Note - After the Commencement of Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) w.e.f 11th 
March, 2024, the powers of the Board of Directors are suspended. 

 

RESOLUTION PROFESSIONAL COMMITTEE (IN LIEU OF THE SUSPENDED BOARD OF DIRECTORS) : 
The Hon’ble NCLT, had vide its order dated March 11, 2024 appointed Mr. Ashok Kumar Golechha 

as the Interim Resolution Professional, for the CIRP of the Company. He was subsequently 

confirmed as Resolution Professional in the meeting of the Committee of Creditors (CoC). Post 

appointment of the IRP, the powers of the Board of Directors of the Company has been suspended.  

  Accordingly, a Resolution Professional Committee was formed by the RP, in lieu of the Suspended 

Board of Directors, mainly for the purpose of adopting Financial Results/ Statements and for various 

other compliances of the Company.   

  During the Financial Year under review 4 meetings of Resolution Professional Committee were held 

on 31st May, 2024, 13th August, 2024, 13th November, 2024 and 7th February, 2025. 

  The Financials for quarter and year ended March 31, 2024, were adopted by this Committee in its 

meeting held on May 31, 2024. 

  The composition of the Committee is stated herewith: 
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Sr. 

No. 

Name of the Member  Chairman of the 

Committee 

No. of meetings 

held in their 

tenure 

1 Mr. Ashok Kumar Golechha 

(Resolution Professional) 

Chairman 

 

4 

 

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD/ RESOLUTION PROFESSIONAL: 

In compliance with the requirements of the Act and the Listing Regulations, the Company has 
constituted 3 (Three) Committees of the Board as below: 

 

1. Audit Committee; 

2. Nomination and Remuneration Committee; 

3. Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee; and 

 

Details of all Committees and its constitution with respect to their terms of reference, meetings 
and attendance of the members at the meetings held during the financial year, are provided in the 
Report on Corporate Governance, forming part of this Annual Report. 

 

As per relaxation given by Regulation 15(2A) and 15(2B) of the SEBI (Listing Obligation Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as our Company is undergoing corporate insolvency resolution 
process, accordingly provision of Regulation 17 i.e. Board of Directors, Regulation 18 i.e. Audit 
Committee, Regulation 19 i.e. Nomination and Remuneration Committee, Regulation 20 i.e. 
Stakeholders Relationship Committee and Regulation 21 i.e. Risk Management Committee of SEBI 
(Listing Obligation Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 shall not be applicable to the 
Company. 

 

However, the roles and responsibilities of the committees specified in the respective regulations 
are being fulfilled by the Resolution Professional Committee. 
 
 AUDIT COMMITTEE 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 177 of the Act and Regulation 18 of the Listing Regulations, 

the Audit Committee of the Company is duly constituted having majority of Independent Directors 

as the members of the Committee including its Chairman. However as per relaxation given under 

15(2B) of SEBI (LODR) Regulation 2015, the roles and responsibilities are being carried out by 

Resolution Professional of the company through duly constituted Resolution Professional 

Committee. 

 

COMPOSITION AND ATTENDANCE: 

However, as per the provisions of the Code and provisions of Regulation 15 (2A) and (2B) of the 

SEBI (LODR) as amended from time to time, the provisions specified in regulation related to Audit 
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Committee, shall not be applicable during the corporate insolvency resolution process. The 

provisions as specified in said regulations of the SEBI (LODR) shall not be applicable during the 

corporate insolvency resolution process period and the roles and responsibilities of the board of 

directors and the committees, specified in the respective regulations, shall be fulfilled by the 

interim resolution professional or resolution professional of the Company. Therefore, a Resolution 

Professional Committee was formed by the RP for conducting various compliances of the 

Company. 

 

TERMS OF REFERENCE TO AUDIT COMMITTEE IN BRIEF 
 
The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are as per the guidelines set out in the Regulation 
18 read with Part C of Schedule II of Listing Regulations and Section 177 of the Act are stated 
herewith which broadly includes: 
 

i.  Developing an annual plan for Committee. 
ii.  Review of financial reporting processes. 
iii. Review of risk management, internal financial controls and governance processes. 
iv. Review and discussions on quarterly, half yearly and annual financial statements and auditors’   

report before submission to the Board for approval. 
v. Interaction with statutory, internal and cost auditors. 
vi. Periodical review of Internal Audit Reports. 
vii. Recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors. 

viii. Risk management framework concerning the critical operations of the Company. 
ix. Appointment of Chief Financial Officer after assessing qualification, background and experience of 

the candidate. 
x. Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans. 
xi. Utilization of loans/advances/investment made by the holding company in the subsidiary exceeding 

rupees 100 crore or 10% of the asset size of the subsidiary, whichever is lower including existing 
loans/ advances/ investments. 

xii. Reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses / application of funds raised through an 
issue (public issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of funds utilized for purposes 
other than those stated in the offer document / prospectus / notice and the report submitted by the 
monitoring agency monitoring the utilisation of proceeds of a public or rights issue, and making 
appropriate recommendations to the board to take up steps in this matter. 

xiii. Reviewing and monitoring the auditor’s independence and performance, and effectiveness of 
audit process. 

xiv. approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the listed entity with related   parties; 
xv. scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments. 

 
In addition to the above, the Audit Committee also reviews the following: 
• Matter to be included in the Director’s Responsibility Statement. 
• Changes, if any, in the accounting policies. 
• Major accounting estimates and significant adjustments in financial statement. 
• Disclosures in financial statement including related party transactions. 

 Modified opinion in the Audit report. 
• Letters of Statutory Auditors to management on internal control weakness, if any. 
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• Recommend to the Board the appointment, re-appointment and, if required the replacement 
or removal of statutory auditors considering their independence and effectiveness, and recommend 
the audit fees. 
• Functioning of the Vigil Mechanism / Whistle Blower Policy. 
• Management Discussions & Analysis of the Company’s operations. 
• Compliance with the listing and other legal requirements concerning financial statements. 
 
STAKEHOLDERS / INVESTOR GRIEVANCE COMMITTEE  

The Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee of the Company is duly constituted in compliance with 
the provisions of Section 178 of the Act and Regulation 20 of the Listing Regulations. 

However pursuant to provisions of Regulation 15 (2B) of SEBI (LODR), 2015 the provisions specified 
in Regulations 20 (Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee), shall not be applicable during the 
insolvency resolution process. 

Nonetheless, the Company is furnishing the requisite details pertaining to Stakeholders’ 
Relationship Committee in terms of Schedule V of the SEBI (LODR) and roles and responsibilities are 
being carried out by Resolution Professional of the company through duly constituted Resolution 
Professional Committee. 

Only COC meetings were conducted by Resolution Professional of the Company during the 
Financial Year under review. 

Broad terms of Reference to Stakeholders/Investor Grievance Committee  
 
To approve Share Transfers, to review and advise the Company on any grievance in relation to: 
 

  (a)   Non-transfer of shares 

  (b)   Non-receipt of Annual Report 

  (c)   Any other grievance raised by any Stakeholders 

 

STATUS OF INVESTOR COMPLAINTS 
All the complaints received from the Investors during the year under review were resolved. 
 
NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE   

Pursuant to the Section 178 of the Act and Regulation 19 of the Listing Regulations, the Company 
has duly constituted the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company. 

However, As per the provisions of Code and relaxation provided in Regulation 15 (2B) of the SEBI 
(LODR), 2015, the provisions specified in Regulations 19 shall not be applicable to the Company 
during the corporate insolvency resolution process and the roles and responsibilities of the 
committees specified in the respective regulations, shall be fulfilled by the Resolution Professional. 
Therefore, the roles and responsibilities are being carried out by Resolution Professional of the 
company through duly constituted Resolution Professional Committee. 

Accordingly, the RP Committee is empowered to formulate the Remuneration Policy which includes 
the criteria for qualifications, experience, independence and remuneration of the Directors, Key 
Managerial Personnel (KMP) and employees, and criteria for performance evaluation of all the 
directors and to recommend to the Board their appointment/ re-appointment. 
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Only RP Committee meetings were conducted by Resolution Professional of the Company 
during the Financial Year 2024-25. 

 

Shareholding of Non-Executive Directors, Independent Directors as on March 31, 2025 are as 
follows:  

 

S.No NAME OF DIRECTORS Shareholding  

1 Mr. Dhrupchand Ramdhar Varma Independent 
Director 

NIL 

 

2. CODE OF CONDUCT 

The Company has adopted the Code of Conduct for its Whole Time Director, Senior  

Management and other Executives 

 

The Committee has also adopted a Code of Conduct for Non-Executive Directors which  

incorporates the duties of Independent Directors as laid down in Schedule IV of the Act 
and the same is available on the website of the Company at www.vasinfrastructureltd.com 

 

3. BOARD AND DIRECTOR EVALUATION 

 The evaluation of the performance of the Board of Directors as well as that of its committees 
and individual directors including chairman of the board, key managerial personnel/senior 
management etc., was not carried out during the year as the Company was admitted into CIRP 
as on March 11, 2024. 
 
4.  VIGILANCE MECHANISM FOR EMPLOYEES 
The Vigilance Mechanism of the Company, which also incorporates a Whistle Blower Policy are 
as per the Listing Agreement. The Policy on Vigilance Mechanism and Whistle Blower Policy 
may be accessed on the Company’s Website: www.vasinfrastructureltd.com. 
 
Address                             :   Jwala Estate, Pushp Vinod-2, “A” Wing 
           Ground floor 
                                                                     Soniwadi, Off S. V. Road 
                                                                    Borivali West, Mumbai 400 092 
                                  Tel: 022 28993092/28990841  

 

COMPANYS’ INVESTOR EMAIL          :  vasinfrastructureltd@yahoo.com  
 

5. RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY 

The Company has a Fraud Risks and Management Policy to deal with instances of Fraud and Mis-
Management.   

 

The Fraud Risk Management ensures that strict confidentiality is maintained while dealing with 
concern and also that no discrimination will be made to any official for a genuinely raised 
grievances. 
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6. SHAREHOLDERS RIGHTS 

 As the Company’s’ Quarterly Results are published in English and Marathi edition and updated on 
Company’s’ website: www.vasinfrastructureltd.com the Quarterly, Half Yearly, Yearly Financial 
Statement and their Financial performances is not sent to each shareholder of the Company 

  

Financial performance is not sent to each shareholder of the Company 

 

CFO Mr.  James Desai  

Address    
Jwala Estate, 2nd Floor, Pushp Vinod-2, A Wing, Soniwadi. Off S. V. Road, Borivali 
(W), Mumbai 400 092 
Tel.: 022-2899 3 0 9 2  / 2899 0841 

 

 7. MARKET PRICE DATA:  High, low, during each month (Bombay Stock Exchange) from April 2024 
to March 31, 2025, are as under: -. 
 

MONTH HIGH (RS). LOW (RS.) 

APRIL 2024 4.24 2.85 

MAY 2024 3.89 3.59 

JUNE 2024 3.80 3.04 

JULY  2024 4.28 3.16 

AUGUST 2024 4.63 3.43 

SEPTEMBER 2024 5.06 3.97 

OCTOBER 2024 4.72 3.85 

NOVEMBER 2024 5.17 3.31 

DECEMBER  2024 5.61 3.47 

JANUARY 2025 5.64 5.00 

FEBRUARY 2025 9.28 5.36 

MARCH 2025 7.98 6.86 

 
8. SHARE TRANSFER PROCESS:  
As per the Regulation 40 of the SEBI Listing Regulation, the Company had stopped accepting any 
Share Transfer request for Securities held in physical form. 
 
Details of last Annual General Meeting (AGM) held by the Company are as under: 
 

DATE TIME VENUE OF AGM Special Resolution passed 

Monday, September 
23, 2024 

12.30 
p.m. 

Jwala Estate, Pushp Vinod-
2, A Wing, 2nd Floor, 
Soniwadi, Near Kora 
Kendra, Off S.V. Road, 
Borivali (West), Mumbai 
400 092 though Video 
Conferencing (VC) facility  

ITEM NO.3 

Related Party Transactions 
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9.  GENERAL SHAREHOLDERS' INFORMATION 

           1.    Annual General Meeting.          

                  Day, Date and Time:   By Separate Communication 

 

OPINION IN AUDIT REPORT CARRIED BY STATUTORY AUDITOR: 

The Audit Report carried by Statutory Auditors does not contain any Qualification or adverse 
remark.  The Report read with the notes of Accounts are self-explanatory and requiring no 
further clarification 

     

  10.  FINANCIAL CALENDAR (2024- 2025) 

Annual General Meeting for the Year ended 31st March, 2025 

Date:   September 23, 2025 at 12.30 pm (IST) through video Conferencing ((VC)   

Financial Calendar:  For Financial Year ending 31st March, 2025 

 

Results will be announced tentatively (Subject to change) by  :  

 

 First Quarter    :  on or before 14.08.2025. 

 Half Yearly        :  on or before 14.11.2025 

 Third Quarter :   on or before 14.02.2026 

 Fourth Quarter & Annual: on or before 30.05.2026. 

 
11. BOOK CLOSURE DATE: 17/09/2025 to 23/09/2025 (both days inclusive). 

  12. DIVIDEND PAYMENT DATE: Not applicable since dividend not declared  
         Registered Office      :  Madhav Niwas CHSL, Flat No.B-1B, First Floor, Natakwala  Lane,  
         Off S.V. Road, Borivali (West), Mumbai 400 092. 

.     CIN No.      :   L65100MH1994PLC076538 

Email           :   Vasinfrastructureltd@yahoo.com 

Website      :   www.vasinfrastructureltd.com 

Telephone  :   022 2899 3092 / 2899 0841 

Fax               :   022 2899 7806 

 

13.  LISTING ON STOCK EXCHANGE:  Equity Shares, Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd., 

                                                 Dalal Street, Mumbai 400 001.         

                                            

14.   STOCK MARKET INFORMATION 

  i)   Stock Code                       :   531574 

 The Company has paid BSE Listing fees for the 2025-2026.  
 
 15.   REGISTRARS & TRANSFER AGENTS  :    MUFG Intime (I) Pvt. Ltd. C-101, 247 Park, LBS Marg, 

                                                                 Vikhroli (West), Mumbai 400 083 
                                                                          Tel.: 022-4918 6000 / 4918 6270 
                                                                          Email: rnt.helpdesk@in.mpms.mufg.com 
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Share Transfer System 
Your Company's Equity Shares are admitted with the Depository System of National Securities 
Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) as an eligible 
security under the Depositories Act, 1996. As such, facilities for dematerializations of your 
Company's Equity Shares are available vide INE 192 CO 10 13 at both the depositories. Your 
Company's Equity Shares are under compulsory dematerialization. 

 

16(a) DISTRIBUTION OF SHAREHOLDING AS ON 31.3.2025 OF EQUITY SHARES OF RS.10/-EACH 
FULLY PAID UP 
 

No. of Equity 
Shares held 

No. of Share       
Holders 

% of Holders No. of Shares held % of shares 
held 

001-5000 3329 94.73 1391952 9.20 

5001-10000 67 1.91 497801 3.29 

10001-100000 98 2.79 2544926 16.82 

100001-above 20 0.57 10694721 70.69 

TOTAL 3514 100.00 15129400 100.00 

 
 
b)  Categories of Shareholders as on 31.3.2025, OF EQUITY SHARES OF RS.10/- EACH FULLY PAID 
UP 
 

Particulars  No. of Shares                % To Total Share 
Holding 

Promoters group 7023391 46.42 

Financial Institutions/Banks/Insurance 
Companies/Mutual funds/Trust 

0 0 

FIIs/NRIs/OCBs/Other Foreign shareholders 
(Other than Promoter Group)   

154194 1.02 

Bodies Corporate 599592 3.96 

Public & Others  7352223 48.60 

TOTAL: 15129400 100.00 

 

17. DEMATERIALIZATION OF SHARES AND LIQUIDITY: 

Approximately 99.56% of the Equity Shares have been dematerialized upto 31st March, 2025. 

Trading in Equity Shares of the Company is permitted only in dematerialized form 

compulsorily as per notification issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India. 

 

i) Materially significant related Party Transactions that may have potential conflict with the 
interests of company 

The Company does not have material significant R elated Party Transactions i.e. 

transactions of the company of material nature with its Promoters, Directors of the 

Management, or their subsidiaries or relatives etc. that may have potential conflicts with 
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the interest of the Company at large. However, Disclosure of Transactions with related 

party have been made in the Balance-Sheet in Notes to Accounts. 

   

Non-Compliance by the Company, penalties, and strictures imposed on the Company by 

Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd. or SEBI or any statutory authority, on any matter related to 

Capital Markets as per Secretarial Audit Report on SEBI matters.  The Report are self- 

      explained as under:  

 

S. 
No. 

Action taken by Details of violation Details of action 
taken  
g. fines, 
warning letter,  
debarment, etc. 

Observations/  
remarks of the 
Practicing 
Company  
Secretary, if 
any 

1 Securities 
Appellate, 
Tribunal, 
Mumbai 

Securities and 
Exchange Board of 
India (Substantial 
Acquisition of 
Shares and 
Takeovers 
Regulation 1992) 

Securities and 
Exchange 
Board of India 
has passed an 
Order dated 
16.03.2023 
against VAS 
Infrastructure 
Ltd. including 
other Group 
Companies 
for not 
making 
disclosures 
under 
Securities and 
Exchange 
Board of India 
Act 1992 and 
Rules and 
Regulations 
made 
thereunder at 
the time.  The 
allotment of 
Equity shares 
during the 
Financial Year 
2009-2010 
whereby the 
shareholding 
of the 

The Notices for 
shares acquired 
more than 5% 
limit may be 
transferred to 
the Investor 
Protection Fund 
(IPF) or sold and 
the proceeds 
thereof (for Sale 
of shares more 
than 5%) be 
deposited with 
the IPF within a 
period of 3 
months.  
Further, the 
Promoters are 
also   debarred 
from accessing 
the Securities 
market and also 
restrained from 
buying selling or 
otherwise 
dealing in 
shares either 
directly or 
indirectly for a 
period of one 
year from the 
date of Order. 
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Promoters 
was 5% and 
more.  
Securities and 
Exchange 
Board of India 
has directed 
the Company. 

Till date certain 
restrictions are 
imposed by 
Stock Exchange 
(BSE), therefore, 
Company is not 
liable to 
dispose-off 
shares. 
 

 
18. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION: 

The Quarterly/Half Yearly Unaudited Financial Results/Audited Financial Results are 
published in Navshakti and Free Press Journal, and put up on the website of Bombay Stock 
Exchange Ltd. as well as on Company's website. The notices to the stakeholders are published 
in Navshakti and Free Press Journal. 
 

 19. PRACTICING COMPANY SECRETARIES CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE: 
Your Company has obtained a certificate from the Practicing Company Secretary regarding 
compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in LODR of SEBI Regulation 
Act of the Listing Agreement with Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd. This is annexed to the Annual 
Report. The Certificate will also be sent to Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd., along with the Annual 
Accounts to be filed by the Company. 
 

   20.  FUTURE PROSPECTS: Future Prospects of the Company is dependent on the success of the  
         CIRP Process.  

 
21.  DECLARATION 

The Company has laid down a code of conduct for all Board Members and Senior 
Management of the Company which is posted on the website of the company.   

                                         
 

 

                                                                    For Vas Infrastructure Ltd 

                                                                                      (Company under CIRP)  

 

 

 

                     Sd/- 

Place: Mumbai                                                        Ashok Kumar Golechha 
Date: August 12, 2025                                                            Resolution Professional  
                                                                    Regn.No. IBBI/IPA-002/IP-N000932/2019- 2020/12973 
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CFO CERTIFICATION 
 

To, 

The Resolution Professional, 

VAS INFRASTRUCTURE LTD. 
 

We, the Executive Director & CFO, appointed in terms of Companies Act, 2013, certify to the 
Resolution Professional that 

 
a) We have reviewed the Financial Statements and Cash Flow Statement, for the year ended 

31st March, 2025 and to the best of our knowledge and belief. 

b) these statements do not contain any materially untrue statements or omit any material fact or 

contain statements that might be misleading and; 

c) these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company's affairs and in 

compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations. 

d) To the best of my knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during 

the year are fraudulent, illegal or volatile of the Company's Code of Conduct. 

e) We accept the responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial 

reporting evaluate the effectiveness, disclosing the deficiencies in the design or operation of 

internal controls, if any to the Auditors and Audit Committee and take such steps or propose 

to take steps to rectify these deficiencies. 
 

f)   We have indicated, wherever applicable to the Auditors about: 
 

i)  Significant changes in Internal Control over financial reporting during the year. 
 

ii) Significant changes in Accounting Policies, the same have been disclosed in the notes 
to the financial statement. 
 

 
 
     For VAS INFRASTRUCTURE LTD. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
     MR. JAMES DESAI 

  PLACE: MUMBAI                      
DATE:  August 12, 2025 
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Annexure III 

REMUNERATION POLICY 

OBJECTIVE 

The Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) and the Listing Regulations requires a Company to frame a 
policy for determining the remuneration payable to the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel 
(KMPs) and other Senior level employees.  
The objective of the Remuneration Policy (the Policy) of the Company is to provide a framework for 
the remuneration of the Independent Directors, Non-Executive Directors, Managing Directors, 
Executive Directors, KMPs, and other senior level employees of the Company. 
 
THE OBJECTIVE OF THE POLICY IS TO ENSURE THAT: 

i. The level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract & retain talent 
required to run the Company successfully; 
ii. Relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate benchmarks; and 

 
REMUNERATION OF THE INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS AND NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS 

• The Independent Directors and Non-Executive Directors are eligible for sitting fees for attending 
the meetings of the Board and the Committees thereof. 
• The Independent Directors and Non-Executive Directors are also eligible for commission, subject 
to the limits prescribed under the Act and the Rules framed there under. 
• The Independent Directors are not eligible for stock options. 
• The Non-Executive Directors (other than promoter Directors) shall be eligible for the stock 
options. 
 
REMUNERATION OF THE MANAGING DIRECTOR AND EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS 

• The remuneration of the Managing Director and Executive Directors is recommended by the 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee (‘NRC’) to the Board. Based on the recommendations of 
the NRC, the Board determines and approves the remuneration of the Managing Director and 
Executive Directors, subject to necessary approvals, if any. 
• The remuneration paid to the Managing Director and Executive Directors shall be within the 
limits prescribed under the Act and approved by the shareholders of the Company. The 
remuneration structure includes fixed salary, perquisites, bonus, other benefits and allowances and 
contribution to funds, etc. 
• The Executive Directors (other than the promoter Directors) shall be eligible for stock options. 
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REMUNERATION OF THE KMPS (OTHER THAN EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS) AND SENIOR LEVEL 

EMPLOYEES 

The key components of remuneration package of the KMPs (other than Executive Directors) and 
Senior level employees shall comprise of fixed salary, perquisites, annual bonus, other benefits and 
allowances and contribution to Funds, etc. They shall be eligible for stock options. 
 
POLICY REVIEW 

This Policy shall be reviewed by the Board as may be deemed necessary and in accordance with any 
statutory/regulatory requirements. In case of any change/amendment in applicable 
statutes/regulations, the Policy shall stand revised to the extent thereto. 
The NRC shall implement the Policy, and may issue such guidelines, lay down the process etc. as it 
may deem fit. 
 

 

For and on behalf of the Board 

For Vas Infrastructure Ltd. 

 

            Sd/- 

Place: Mumbai                                                   (Ashok Kumar Golechha) 

Date: August 12, 2025                           Resolution Professional  

                                                                Regn.No.IBBI/IPA-002/IP-N000932/2019- 2020/12973 
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Annexure IV 

Form No. MR-3 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

For The Financial Year Ended 31st March, 2025 
 

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the 
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

 

To 

The Members 

VAS INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED (CN) 

B-1,1st Floor, Madhav Niwas CHSL, Opp S V Road, 
Natakwala Lane, Borivali (W), Mumbai -400092 
 
I have conducted the review of the compliance of the applicable statutory provisions and the 
adherence to good corporate practices of VAS INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED (CN) (hereinafter 
referred as “the listed entity”) having its Registered Office at Madhav Niwas CHSL, Flat No B-
1B, First Floor, Natakwala Lane, Opp S.V. Road, Borivali West, Mumbai, 400092. Secretarial 
Review was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the 
corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon. 

Based on my verification of the listed entity’s books, papers, minutes books, forms and returns 
filed and other records maintained by the listed entity and also the information provided by the 
listed entity, its officers, agents and authorised representatives during the conduct of 
Secretarial Review, we hereby report that in my opinion, the listed entity has, during the 
review period covering the financial year ended on March 31, 2025, generally complied with 
the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board 
processes and compliance mechanism in place to the extent applicable, subject to the 
reporting made hereinafter:  

Pursuant to the order of the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT), Mumbai, dated 
11 March, 2024, the Company is undergoing CIRP under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 
2016. Mr. Ashok Kumar Golechha, bearing registration number IBBI/IPA-002/IP-N000932/2019-

2020/12973, has been appointed as the Resolution Professional. 

Accordingly, the powers of the Board of Directors have been suspended and are being 
exercised by the RP in terms of Section 17 of the Code. 

As per Regulation 17(1)(a) of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, a listed entity is required to 
have a minimum of three directors on the Board. However, pursuant to the initiation of the 
Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 
2016 vide order dated March 11, 2024, the powers of the Board of Directors have been 
suspended. 
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In the meeting of the Committee of Creditors (CoC) held on 23.04.2024, a resolution was 
passed stating that it is not required to maintain the minimum Board composition, as the 
Board of Directors stands suspended under the provisions of the IBC, and all powers are vested 
in the Resolution Professional (RP). 

Accordingly, the Company is not in violation of the minimum Board composition requirement 
under SEBI (LODR), as the IBC provisions override other laws in case of conflict, as per Section 
238 of the IBC. 

It is further noted that, during the period under review, the minutes of the RP Committee 
meetings were signed by the Resolution Professional. This practice has been followed as per 
the guidance of the Resolution Professional overseeing the Corporate Insolvency Resolution 
Process (CIRP), and in accordance with the procedural requirements under the Insolvency and 
Bankruptcy Code, 2016.  

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 
maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2025 according to the 
provisions of: 
  
(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder; 
 
(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made          thereunder; 
(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder; 
(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the 

extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial 
Borrowings1; 

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of 
India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):- 

i. Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015; 

ii. Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirement) 
Regulations, 2018; 

iii. Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) 
Regulations, 2011; 

iv. Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018 – (During the 
period under review Not Applicable to the Company); 

v. Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014 – 

    (During the period under review Not Applicable to the Company); 
vi. Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008 – 

(During the period under review Not Applicable to the Company); 
vii. Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non- Convertible and 

Redeemable Preference Shares) Regulations, 2013 – (During the period under review Not 
Applicable to the Company); 

viii. Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015; 
ix. Securities and Exchange Board of India (Depositories and Participants) Regulations, 1996; 

and 
 
(vi) Other laws as may be applicable specifically to the Company, namely: NIL 
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We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:  
 
(i) Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India. 
(ii) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with Stock Exchange(s). 
 
During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, 
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above. 

 
Adequate notice is given to all members to schedule the Committee of Creditors Meetings, agenda 
and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least five days in advance, and a system exists for 
seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the 
meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting. 
 
Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views are captured and 
recorded as part of the minutes. 
 
We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate 
with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable 
laws, rules, regulations and guidelines (Please see Annexure B). 
 

Date: May 21, 2025 CS Pranay Mandhana 
Place: Nagpur Practising Company Secretary 

UDIN:  A060165G000413639      
ACS No. A60165                    

   CP No: 23399 
 
 
Note: This report is to be read with the list of Applicable Laws and our letter of even date which 
are attached as Annexure A and Annexure B respectively and form an integral part of this report.  
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ANNEXURE A 
 

VAS INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED (CN) 

B-1,1st Floor, Madhav Niwas CHSL, Opp S V Road, 
Natakwala Lane, Borivali (W), Mumbai -400092 
 
Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 
 
1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit. 
 
2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain 
reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The 
verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. 
We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our 
opinion. 
 
3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of 
Accounts of the Company. 
 
4. No audit has been conducted on the compliance with finance and taxation laws as the same 
are subject to audit by the Statutory Auditor and Internal Auditor to the Company and their 
observations, if any, shall hold good for the purpose of this audit report. 
 
5. Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the 
compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc. 
 
6. The compliance with the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws rules, 
regulations the responsibility of management, our examination was limited to the verification of 
procedures on test basis. 
 
7. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company 
nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the 
Company. 
 
8. Audit of the compliance with Other Laws has been undertaken based on scope of audit and 
the applicability of such Laws as ascertained by the Company and informed to us.  
 
9. We have relied on reports of Internal Audit, Regulatory Inspection/Audit to the extent made 
available to us and the observations, if any, contained in such reports shall hold good for the 
purpose of this audit report. 

 

 

Date: May 21, 2025 CS Pranay Mandhana 
Place: Nagpur Practising Company Secretary 

UDIN: A060165G000413639   
ACS No. A60165                    

   CP No: 23399 
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ANNEXURE B 
 
Laws applicable to the Company 
 
The following laws have been taken into account to verify if that there are adequate systems and 
processes to monitor and ensure compliance with, in the Company, commensurate with its with 
the size and operations: 
 
1. Companies Act 2013, and the rules thereunder 
2. The Maternity Benefit Act, 1961 
3. Payment of Wages Act, 1936 
4. Minimum wages act-regional 
5. The Payment of Bonus Act, 1965 
6. Equal Remuneration Act, 1976 
7. The Maharashtra Labour Welfare Fund Act, 1953 
8. The Maharashtra Workmen's Minimum House Rent Allowance Act, 1983 
9. Employee’s Provident Fund & Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952 
10. The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 
11. The Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) 

Act, 2013 
12. Employee Compensation Act, 1923 
13. Contract Labour (Regulation and Abolition) Act, 1970 
14. The Maharashtra Private Security Guards (Regulation of Employment & Welfare) Act, 1981 

& Maharashtra Private Security Agencies, 2005 
15. Employees' State Insurance Act, 1948 
16. Bombay Shops & Establishment Act 1948 
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ANNEXURE V 

 

COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

The Members, 
VAS INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED (CN)  
Madhav Niwas CHSL, Flat No. B-1 A 1st Floor Natakwala Lane,  
Opp. S. V. Road, Borivali West, Mumbai, Maharashtra, India, 400092 
 

We have examined the compliance with the conditions of Corporate Governance of VAS 
INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED (CN)  (“the Company”) for the year ended on 31st March, 2025, as 

prescribed in the Regulations 17 to 27, 62(1A), and Para C, D and E of Schedule V of The 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”).The National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT) vide order 
dated 11 March, 2024 has initiated Corporate Insolvency Resolutions Process (CIRP) under the 

Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 for the Company. Further, vide the above mentioned 
NCLT's Order and pursuant to Section 17 of IBC, the power of Board of Directors of the 

Company stood suspended and such powers were vested with interim Resolution Professional 
(IRP)/ Resolution Professionals (RP), prior to the date of commencement of CIRP, the board of 

directors was responsible for complying with the conditions of Corporate Governance as 
stipulated under Chapter IV, of Listing Regulation 

 
The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the 

management. Our Examination was limited to review the procedures and implementation 
thereof, adopted by the company for ensuring the compliance of the condition of Corporate 

Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statement of 
the company. 

 
Subject to above, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the 

explanation given to us, we certify that the company has complied with the conditions of 
corporate governance as stipulated in the above-mentioned listing Agreement. Subsequent to 

the date of commencement of CIRP, complying with the provisions as stipulated in the said 
listing regulation, refer to in paragraph above, were not applicable on account of suspension of 

the power of the Board of Directors and its Committee thereof, however, the requirements of 
such provision were fulfilled by the concern IRP / RP to the extent deemed appropriate. 

 
We have been explained that no investor grievances are pending for a period exceeding one 

month against the company as per the records maintained by the Company. 
Note on Board Composition during CIRP: 

 
As per Regulation 17(1)(a) of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, a listed entity is required to 

have a minimum of three directors on the Board. However, pursuant to the initiation of the 
Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 

2016 vide order dated March 11, 2024, the powers of the Board of Directors have been 
suspended. 
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In the meeting of the Committee of Creditors (CoC) held on 24.04.2024, a resolution was 
passed stating that it is not required to maintain the minimum Board composition, as the Board 

of Directors stands suspended under the provisions of the IBC, and all powers are vested in the 
Resolution Professional (RP). 

 
Accordingly, the Company is not in violation of the minimum Board composition requirement 

under SEBI (LODR), as the IBC provisions override other laws in case of conflict, as per Section 
238 of the IBC. 

 
We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the further viability of the 

company nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the 
affairs of the Company. 

 
For Pranay Mandhana & Associates  

August 12, 2025 
Nagpur 
 

 
 
CS Pranay Mahesh Mandhana 
UDIN: A060165G000997191   
ACS : 60165 
CP No : 23399 
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ANNEXURE VI 

 

CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS 
(Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015) 

To, 
The Members of 
VAS INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED (CN)  
Madhav Niwas CHSL, Flat No B-1B, First Floor, Natakwala Lane,  
Opp S.V. Road, Borivali West, Borivali West, Mumbai, Maharashtra, India, 400092  
 
We have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received 
from the Directors of VAS INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED (CN) having CIN 
L65100MH1994PLC076538 and having registered office at Madhav Niwas CHSL, Flat No. B-
1B 1st Floor Natakwala Lane, Opp. S. V. Road, Borivali West, Mumbai, Maharashtra, India, 
400092 (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Company’), produced before us by the Company for 
the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 10(i) 
of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 read with SEBI letter dated September 23, 2021. 
 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the verifications 
(including Directors Identification Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as 
considered necessary and explanations furnished to us by the Company and its officers, we 
hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below for 
the Financial Year ending on 31st March, 2025 have been debarred or disqualified from 
being appointed or continuing as Directors of companies  by  the  Securities  and  Exchange  
Board  of  India,  Ministry  of  Corporate  Affairs, or any such other Statutory Authority. 

 

Sr. 
No. 

Name of Director DIN Date of appointment 

in Company 

 

1 DHRUPCHAND RAMDHAR 
VARMA    

09429519 18/12/2021 

2 KIRTI KISHORE PADAVE 
  

05344997 14/08/2012 

  

Ensuring the eligibility of the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board, is the 
responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an 
opinion on these, based on our verification. This certificate is valid as on the date of issue, 
and is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or 
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

 

 

 

 

48



 

 
 

 

 

 

Note: The Company is currently under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) as 
per the provisions of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016, pursuant to order of the 
Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT) dated 11 March, 2024 Accordingly, the 
powers of the Board of Directors have been suspended and are being exercised by the 
Resolution Professional (RP), Mr. Mr. Ashok Kumar Golechha having Registration No: 
IBBI/IPA-002/IP-N000932/2019-2020/12973. This certificate is based on the records and 
documents available as of the date of certification and does not comment on the status of 
disqualification, if any, that may have occurred after the date of verification. 

 
For Pranay Mandhana & Associates  

 

 

 

August 12, 2025 
Nagpur 
     

CS Pranay Mahesh Mandhana 
UDIN: A060165G000997081 
ACS : 60165 
CP No : 23399 
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ANNEXURE VII 
AOC-2 

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the 
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014) 

 
Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with 

related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 

including certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso thereto 

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis:-NIL 

Sr. 

No. 

Name(s) 

of the 

related 

party 

and 

nature 

of 

relation

ship 

Nature of 

contracts/ 

arrangeme

nts/ 

transaction

s 

Duration of 

the 

contracts/ 

arrangeme

nts/ 

transaction

s 

Salient 

terms of 

the 

contracts 

or 

arrangem

ents or 

transactio

ns 

including 

the value, 

if any 

 

Justificati

on for 

entering 

into 

such 

contracts 

or 

arrange

ments 

or 

transacti

ons 

 

Date of 

approva

l 

by the 

Board 

 

Amou

nt 

paid 

as 

adva

nces, 

if 

any 

 

Date on which the 

special resolution 

was passed in 

general meeting as 

required under first 

proviso to section 

188 

 

- - - - - - - - - 
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2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis:  
 
ANNEXURE A: 1 
 

Sr. 

No 

Name(s) of 

the related 

party and 

nature of 

relationship 

Nature of 

contracts/arrangem

ents/transactions 

Duration of 

Contract/ar

rangements

/transaction

s 

Salient terms of 

the contracts or 

arrangements or 

transactions 

including the 

value, if any 

Amount in Lakhs 

Date(s) of 

approval by 

the Board, if 

any 

Amount 

paid as 

advances

, if any 

1 Rucha Pawar 

(Company 

Secretary) 

Salary As Agreed 1.20 

- - 

 
 
or and on behalf of the Board 

For Vas Infrastructure Ltd. 

 

             Sd/- 

Place: Mumbai                                                         (Ashok Kumar Golechha) 

Date: August 12, 2025                                            Resolution Professional  

                                                               Regn.No.IBBI/IPA-002/IP-N000932/2019- 2020/12973 
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